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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional
and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(the “Company”) announces the unaudited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the six months ended 30
June 2017, together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding period in 2016 as follows:

INTERIM REPORT 2017 —ZF— L4 i
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AR Z Gk 1E 2 e Ll 2 i W 2 3%

Six months ended
30 June
BEAA=+HIL<EA

Three months ended
30 June
BEAA=+HIE=MEA

Notes
Bt
Revenue A 4
Other income Hob g A 4
Cost of film production B RER AN
Employee benefit expenses EERAMAX 7
Depreciation of property, plant and E - WENEE
equipment e 7
Amortisation of land lease prepayments TEAT 4 b FH E 8 7
Other operating expenses Hi g & A
Finance costs A& KA 6
Loss on early redemption 12 R E AT R A 5
of convertible bonds H & 18
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HMBARN
&8
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate SME—EEE A ElE
. (E518)
Share of loss of a joint venture NIE—MAELE
18
Loss before income tax BRET R B AR 7
Income tax expense Fr5 i = 8
Loss for the period FHE A
Other comprehensive income/ Hihz2mb N~
(expense) (F)
Item that will not be reclassified to AEEINBEEDN
profit or loss EHEH
Gain on revaluation of properties held for ~ EfAFHEERYER
own use &= 1
Income tax relating to gain on revaluation of BRI EGFIEERY
properties held for own use EMREMMEH
Item that may be reclassified HiETREINBER
subsequently to profit or loss MIER
Exchange differences on translation of RGN ETE B TS R
financial statements of foreign operations KEEED
e =58
Other comprehensive income for the FEEEMZ2E
period DN
Total comprehensive expense for the A HE2EMAXEE

period

2017
—E—tf
HK$’000
FER
(Unaudited)
(REER)

32,111
172

(45,408)
(28,036)

(3,439)
(22,060)
(39,555)

(363)

(106,657)

(106,657)

8,001

8,001

(98,656)

2016
ZE—RF
HK$'000
FET
(Unaudited)
CREgER)

2017
—F—tH
HK$’000
FERT
(Unaudited)
(REER)

86,106
378

(56,387)
(30,876)

(6,878)
(46,086)
(74,716)

(497)

(129,035)

(129,035)

11,982

11,982

(117,053)

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHET
(Unaudited)
(CREEER)

(76)

(133)

(130,738)

(130,738)

(8,490)

28,411

102,327
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
NEETR A e PR A0 S HoAt T i i 3

Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June

BEAA=+HILEZMEA BEAA=+HILREAR

2017 2016 2017 2016
—e—tx5 PEEEUEE -—T-t5 LR
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000

B 5 FHET FHET FHET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) IE(SLETT L)) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REFER) (REEZ) (REFER)

Loss for the period FEIEARHARESE -

attributable to:
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE7 ¥ =N (106,656) (129,031) (130,738)
Non-controlling interests FE R AR AE 2 (1) (4) -

(106,657) (129,035) (130,738)

Total comprehensive expense &7 Hif £ HE 5
for the period attributable XA

to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NETE ¥ =N (98,655) (117,049) (102,327)
Non-controlling interests IR (1) (4) -
(98,656) (117,053) (102,327)
Loss per share BREBE
Basic and diluted EAREE 9 (HK2.52 (HK2.53 (HK3.08 (HK3.83

cents i ll) cents i ill) cents i ll) cents i ill)




UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
AR 55 5 TR DL

Notes

B &

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Land lease prepayments
Intangible asset
Investment in an associate
Investment in a joint venture
Available-for-sales investment
Other receivable and deposits

Current assets

Film products and film production

in progress
Investments in films/dramas
production
Trade receivables
Inventories

Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables
Amount due from a joint venture
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Bank overdrafts
Loans from shareholders
Borrowings
Finance lease obligation
Bonds
Convertible bonds
Promissory notes
Provision for income tax

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

#hl.glgé

M- WEREZE 1
REMHE 12
AN LA E 13
mEAE 14
%%@7&5

EhELRE
ﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬁ
HihEWHRIERE S

REBEE
BEXEMMEREYE

B HBRENKE

fE Uk & 15
T t:;
ﬁﬁmﬁ BekHAME

HSZ /TA
EH”“*E%
ﬁi&ﬁﬂm%

REBEE
FEN B 5 F0R 16
ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁ%%
RITEX

%%mﬁm 17

BE

B 7S FH & R IE

BEH 18

A # iR & 5 19

AR 20

FFr 15 B 5 6 8
REAEREEE

EERERRDAER
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30 June
2017
—E—tF
~A=+H
HK$°000
TH&T
(Unaudited)
(REER)

1,728,473
33,700
463,183
113
6,523
5,250
96,109

2,333,351

4,034

6,611
25,510
2,666

112,888
2,414
11,867

165,990

314
114,042
6,806
231,029
6,147
71,561
107,184
79,178
2,951

619,212

(453,222)

1,880,129

31 December
2016
—ET—REF
+=—A=+—H
HK$'000
FAET
(Audited)

(T %)

1,684,984
33,700
470,061
1,079

13

7,020
5,250
93,551

2,295,758

3,630

6,461
6,693
2,414

55,794
2,414
4,283

81,689

1,846
169,020
8,601
10,873
131,490
3,036
61,115

2,951
378,832

(297,143)

1,998,615
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RICHFL L 556 IBIRVLR

30 June 31 December

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
SNA=1+H e al=]
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Pt 5 FHET FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (EE%)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables H b B FB - 24,236
Loans from shareholders [REME R 17 490,441 451,471
Borrowings BE 1,600 48,048
Bonds 62 18 527,537 445,688
Convertible bonds AR E 5 19 = 110,813
Promissory notes EH g 20 = 81,655
Finance lease obligation B IS M E R IE 15,810 20,370
Deferred tax liabilities BRERIBEAE 176,356 176,356
1,211,744 1,358,637
Net assets EEFE 668,385 639,978
Capital and reserves BERGEE
Share capital & A 449,848 399,839
Reserves ki 218,303 239,901
Equity attributable to owners AARIEBABEERS
of the Company 668,151 639,740
Non-controlling interests e RS 234 238

Total equity R 668,385 639,978
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR B 5 R i 52 B 3%

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KATRANES
Properties Share  Convertible Attributable to
Share Share  Special Contributed i i option bond equity A lated lling
capital premium  reserve surplus reserve reserve  reserve reserve losses  Subtotal interests Total
NEER BRE TRRESE FRRED
B* RH#ER HAME REER HBE  RERRE L1 B BitER it B BREH
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér ThEn TEn T TAL Tin  Thn TAL TiEr  Tén Tin  TEx
At 1 January 2016 R=B-%x%£-F-8
(Audited) (B85 3372 663770 1,000 8791 4535 (18579 26229 80,081 (589,678 930,143 29 930382
Shares issued upon conversion of convertible X # A # R fE % % 78
bonds ki3 47,000 47,848 - - - - - (13,169) - 81,679 - 81,679
Early redemption of convertible bonds REBETARES - - - - - - - (2,893 2,878 (18] - (19)
Transactions with owners AREAETHRS 47000 47848 - - - - - (16,082) 2878 81664 - 81,664
Loss for the period *HEER - - - - - - - - (130738)  (130,738) - (130,738)
Gain on revaluation of properties held for own EffkfFEENEHN
use, net of tax Wi NBRE - - - - 36,901 - - - - 36901 - 3901
Exchange differences on translation of financial 855N £ B BB REH
statements of foreign operations EEMERZE - - - - - (8,490) - - - (8490 - (8490
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for ZHHEEMA /(%) BHE
the period - = - - 36,901 (8.490) = - (130,738)  (102,327) - (023
At 30 June 2016 RZZ-7ERB=1H
(Unaudited) (REE®) 380172 711618 1,000 78,791 452,258 (87,069) 26,229 64,019 (717,538) 909,480 239 909,719
At 1 January 2017 R-¥-t£-A-8
(Audited) (E&H) 399,839 731,706 1,000 78,791 405,015 (147,458) 26,229 15,597 (870,979) 639,740 639,978
Share issued upon conversion of RBEERFERE T
other payables &ip 38,798 41,722 = 86,520 86,520
Share issued upon conversion of loan interests X & % M & THR 1,211 13,789 - 25,000 25,000
Lapse of share options BREXK (1,425) - -
Share options compensation BRERE 33,940 33,940 33,940
Transactions with owners HAREAETNRS 32,515 1,425 145,460 145,460
Loss for the period *HEER (129,031) (129,031 (4) (129,035
Exchange differences on translation of financial # &5 EKEBHKE
statements of foreign operations EEMERZR 11,982 11,982 11,982

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for ZHE2EMA /(%) L8
the period 11,982 (129,031)  (117,049) @ (117,053

At 30 June 2017 R-¥-tE£XA=+8
(Unaudited) (REEH) 449,348 793217 1,000 78791 405,015  (135476) 58,744 15,507 (998,585) 668,151 668,385
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UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AR W 5 5 Bl B R

Six months ended 30 June

BESA=Z+HILEREAR

2017 2016

—E—tf AN

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTER FAET

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REHZX) (REEEZ)

Net cash used in operating activities ~— && 2K FTAE S F58 (142,196) (16,464)

Net cash used in investing activities KEEEMARS FE (51,518) (53,790)
Net cash generated by financing BEEBFE

activities He F8 202,962 66,134

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RehfAeFEER

cash equivalents #n, O ) F58 (4,120)
Cash and cash equivalents at the HUzHE Rk

beginning of the period RE&EEIAE (4,218) 4,360
Effects of exchange rate changes of the [ & & &) ¥ i N IR &

balance of cash held HERMEE

in foreign currencies (64)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end HIR 2R & &

of the period RE&EEIAE 176
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

GENERAL

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 November
2001 as an exempted company under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. On 14 October 2010, the
Company deregistered in the Cayman Islands and duly
continued in Bermuda as an exempted company under the
laws of Bermuda effective on 14 October 2010. The
registered office of the Company is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong is Rm. L&M,
21/F., Kings Wing Plaza, Phase 1, No. 3 On Kwan Street,
Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T..

The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. The Company is principally engaged in
investment holding. The principal activities of the Group
include film production and distribution, the provision of
management services to artistes, event coordination,
provision of travel related products and operations of film
studio and hotels.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“HK$’000”) unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”), including
compliance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard
(“HKAS") 34 Interim Financial Reporting and Interpretation
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements
set out in Chapter 18 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
as at 30 June 2017, as the Directors are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable
future, after taking into consideration the ability to
generate funds internally.

The condensed consolidated financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SV 5 e B

— & B
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TARAREBEREHSEFE2ERRE(—NIN—
FEEPIS - BiERIEFD ERSRETAMK LR
BHERR - RZZE—ZFF+A+MAE - ARER
FAEHEHMHEER  YREBREENEXRE
RENERERARFEATFE RZT—ZF+AT+
U B4 & o AR A A & it i E & A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda - KAGIM BB EEEEMBALRTR
DHAFZEEIR RN ESIH2IELRME -
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ATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are measured at fair values. Except as described
below, the accounting policies and methods of
computation used in the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2017 are the same as those followed in
the preparation of the annual financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

In the current interim period, the Group has applied, the
following amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and a new interpretation issued by
the HKICPA:

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and the
new interpretation in the current interim period had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements.

3.

190 25 15 4 SO Ak 4 A PR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BB H R B RE

ERGEBOR

BRIEAAEREBEZREMEIN  AKREZREE
TR A IS RARTIRIRE L AR R R o BR
TXAEN  BE—F—LFRA=+THILER
BHAZREEZEREAMBRERMER 2
BRRAETEARGREZ_T-AF+ZA=
T-RALEFEZASEFEY B REMEES A
A e

RATHHE AKEEATINBELSHMA
GRMEEMBHELE ((EEMBREED])
ZIBRT AR

BB GTERIETR  HEE
€= HEN)

R ERIE2Y BREANKEREBRZR
(1BFTA) ERIAAEE

RATHBREEABEEVBEREEN ZETAR
ZHRBHASERAMEALBEREZMBE
BRMRE RESEREEZGRA TSP BRE
BB BEERYBERERZE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B R R MG
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 4. WA KH b A
Revenue and other income derived from the Group’s BAERREANEE EZ AR A R HE MU A
principal activities recognised during the period are as LN
follows:
Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June

BEAA=+HILEZMEA BEAA=+THILEREAR

2017 2016 2017 2016
—F—tHf —T-REF —E—tHf
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) BE(SLETTET)] (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REER) (REEZ) (RE&ER)

Revenue ' PN
Artiste management fee EUNBEE- 3PN
income 429
Hotel room income B EE B A 7,395
Food and beverage income R IR A 14,634
Entrance fee income P55 A 27,044
Rental income Ha2lA 22,394
Event income BB A 9,045
Sales of travel related itk % 161 B8 2 G
products HE 133
Sales of goods EmiEE 1,568
Ancillary services M 5% AR 75 3,464
86,106
Other income Hitt g A
Bank interest income |ATHF B WA
Wavier of interest of HEAIMERESFH
convertible bonds AP

Others HAth
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ATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the Group is currently organised
into the following operating segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Films production and — Production and distribution of
distribution, sales of films, provision of travel
travel related related products, provision
products, artiste of management services
management and to artistes and event
event coordination coordination

Film studio operation — Operation of film studio
Hotel operation — Operation of hotel

Segment information about the Group’s reportable
segments is presented below.

190 25 15 4 SO Ak 4 A PR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BB H R B RE

51w & K

AEEREGENEERRE - WA ERDE R
RAFEENAAEESSETRERAS (BN
BRERKE(EBEBRRE))ETADER
BEN BT NEERDKATEEDE
AEBYEHELEDEBEH - LWAKTHIE 2

DE e

BYRERET  #E — HERRGEY 1R

RITHEBER - & HARITHERE E &
ANEBRNEHGE RE AREERR
BRIESGE
HR g — EEFEW
B B 4R — EEBE

FRAAKEAEZRD BN LEM2HWT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR BRI R I R
SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. ¥R (80
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results FBBANRES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and INTEZRAZ2RDBEPNAEERAREE D
results by reportable segments: o
Films
production
and
distribution,
sales of travel
related
products,
artiste
management Inter-
and event Film studio Hotel segment
coordination operation operation elimination
ENHER
BT HE
1T 4EEA
ER BA
EBR
EHRE THRBEE EEEE HBEIKSE HeE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER
Six months ended BE-F—-t&~A
30 June 2017 (Unaudited) =+HL<ER
(REERZ)
Revenue from external customers R B M SR & P #I A 22,907
Inter-segment revenue 2 P A 624
Reportable segment revenue AE2HRD BPUWA 62,583 23,531 86,106
Reportable segment (loss)/ AZ2%H B (EER),
revenue N (6,145) (28,008) (27,117)
Other income Hp g A 378
Unallocated corporation expenses 7 % it 22 8] f 3% (45,331)
Gain on exchange difference b 5 = g s 17,333
Finance costs A& AR (74,298)
Loss before income tax BRETERATE R (129,035)

13
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190 25 15 4 SO Ak 4 A PR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S R M E

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

S.

Films production
and distribution,

sales of travel
related products,

51w & B (1)

artiste
management and Inter-
event  Film studio Hotel segment
coordination operation operation elimination Total
BRAER
BT - HE
MR1TAE R
Em-EA
EER
FERE FRHLE BEELE SHEEE BeHE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET FHET
Six months ended BE-FT-"¥7~A
30 June 2016 =+HLEREAR
(Unaudited) (REER)
Revenue from external customers 7€ B R & P 6 W A 2,180 11,960 13,418 -~ 27,558
Inter-segment revenue 2 P A — 17 207 (224) -
Reportable segment revenue AE/RABRA 2,180 11,977 13,625 (224) 27,558
Reportable segment loss BEGE (6,076) (29,765) (22,487) - (58,328)
Other income Hib A 358
Waiver of interest of convertible B @A REFNF A
bond 8,594
Loss on early redemption of REEOBREKESZ
convertible bond &1 (495)
Unallocated corporation expenses 2 & 72 & 52 (6,920)
Loss on exchange difference N EBEEE (7,905)
Finance costs A& KA (66,042)
Loss before income tax BRATEHAIE R (130,738)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers and inter-segment sales during
the period.

Segment loss represents the loss incurred by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ salaries, waiver of interest of
convertible bond, loss on early redemption of convertible
bond, amortisation, other operating income and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

EREHHORAEHARBINRELHWA R D
EEAHE

DEERIER OMELNER  ERYUELESD
RITBAE(BREFHD - MR BRBESFHNH
- RPBELOABRESZEE B Hag
BWARBERAR) < IR BER KD #B
REMMEIBEERRERENTEN X o

pa
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. Jr#EBH(AD)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities PBEERER
Films production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste management
and event  Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
SR RERET
BERITENES ) )
BEAEEREZHHESE RENREE EEES HeH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
At 30 June 2017 (Unaudited) R-ZF—tFXA=+H
(REER)
Reportable segment assets NERPBEE 34,086 1,552,944 866,682 2,453,712
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 1,021
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEEER 8,595
Investment properties BEME 33,700
Unallocated corporation assets APBRBIEE 2,313
Consolidated assets GEEE 2,499,341
Reportable segment liabilities TERFBER (5,890) (92,773) (23,510) (122,173)
Loans from shareholders iR E R (490,441)
Borrowings &8 (232,629)
Bonds &% (599,098)
Convertible bonds AmkES (107,184)
Promissory note AR (79,178)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE (176,356)
Unallocated corporation liabilities RPBRARERE (23,897)
Consolidated liabilities FEARE (1,830,956)

At 31 December 2016 (Audited) N=ZFT—RE+=A

=+ —H(EER)
Reportable segment assets AEHmHHEE 33,599 1,433,305 871,348 2,338,252
Property plant and equipment ME - BER&E 1,233
Cash and cash equivalents RekFEEFEEE 2,181
Investment properties BAEME 33,700
Intangible asset BREE 1,079
Unallocated corporation assets AOERBEE 1,002
Consolidated assets BEAE 2,377,447
Reportable segment liabilities A2 A (8,529) (114,652) (77,058) (200,239)
Loans from shareholders BELI=F (462,344)
Borrowings B8 (179,538)
Bonds &% (506,803)
Convertible bonds HBRRES (110,813)
Promissory note E3ES (81,655)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEAE (176,356)
Unallocated corporate liabilities APBARAE (19,721)

Consolidated liabilities FEakE (1,737,469)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W m/jﬁiﬁ%‘%w;&

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. 4 #bE B (4H)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PBEERERE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and REZHSHBERRARRDBHEIEER:

allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other — (SN ﬁ B MEEEGIRERAZ
than corporate assets; and o Eb

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments — RNBIEEN MEEEEIEEEIER
other than corporate liabilities. 28 -

Other segment information H b5 &6 5 8

Films production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste management

and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
EHRERET

HERTHBES
ZAEHEREHAS HHAHLE BELE BEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 30 June 2017 (Unaudited) R-F—tE~A=+H
(REER)
Depreciation of property, plant ME- BELIENE
and equipment
Amortisation of land lease BN AEHE
prepayments
Addition to non-current assets B EEE M
At 30 June 2016 (Unaudited) R=ZF¥—-7xEXA=t+H
(REER)
Depreciation of property, plant ME- -BEREENE
and equipment 612 13,908 14,823 29,343
Amortisation of land lease FEA L 3t T & 8
prepayments - 5,504 1,122 6,716
Addition to non-current assets FERMBEEEM 345 16,192 254 16,791
Geographical information HEER
All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are REBERBWRARIER ﬁ EHEE EEE # %EA
principally attributable to the People’s Republic of China RAME(PEDBESS (N AEEBETEE
(“PRC”) including Hong Kong (being the place of domicile NAEIFTE R E) o
of the major companies comprising the Group).
The geographical location of customers is based on the EPMEERNDERETEFPERRETSONML
location at which the contracts are negotiated and entered EfME - REMNBELPHBRAETEREFTH -

with the customers. The total revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.

Three months ended
30 June

BEAA=+HILE=M@EA

2017
—F—tHF
HK$’000
TERT
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

Finance lease charges

Interest on bonds

Interest on convertible bonds

Interest on promissory note

Interest on loan from
shareholders

Interest on loan from a related
company

Interest on unsecured other
borrowings

Interest on secured other
borrowings

Interest on secured bank
borrowings

VMBHEEEA 524
BEHEFE 18,192
AR ESF A 2,710
AEEERF B 2,383
R ERMF B

10,988
—ME g AR ERD

FE

Hihm I EEF B

HpFEMEEFE

BEMRTEENS

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 7.

Three months ended
30 June

BEAA=+BILE=MEA

2017
—E-tE
HK$’000
TF#ET
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

Loss before income tax is
arrived at after charging
Auditor’'s remuneration
Amortisation of land lease

prepayments
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’
remuneration)

Salaries and allowances

Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes

Equity settled share-based
payment expenses

WRETS BRI A B E Rk
T3 &\
% A & 175
T8 F + 3t 72 & B 8N
3,439
ME - BEKRZE
e 28,036
EEREMMX
(BIEESHS)

e RoERh
RARAE R FH B 3R

UARE 5 4 H 2 B An
AR X

o IS R B R E

il A

Six months ended
30 June

BEARA=+HIEREAR

2016 2017 2016
AN —F—tHF AN
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET
(Unaudited) IE(SLETTNETe)] (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEZ) (REEER)

1,038
34,842
5,389
4,723

20,569

B B 43 B Hif e 18
Six months ended
30 June
BEARA=THLREA

2016 2017 2016
S —FT—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TF#ET FET

(Unaudited)
(REEER)

(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

(Unaudited)
(REEER)

350

6,878

30,876

17
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AR BB R I L
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the six
months ended 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil) as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits in Hong Kong during
these periods.

The PRC Enterprises Income Tax at 25% has not been
provided as the PRC subsidiaries incurred losses for
taxation purpose for both periods.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$129,035,000 (2016: HK$130,738,000)
and the weighted average of approximately 4,194,558,000
(2016: 3,411,778,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
period.

Diluted loss per share for the loss attributable to the
owners of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2017 and 2016 was the same as basic loss per
share as the impact of the exercise of the share options,
warrants and convertible bonds is anti-dilutive.

DIVIDEND

The Directors does not recommend the payment of an
interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2017
(2016: Nil).

10.

Fie 15 B B ¢

HRAEERBE-_T—tFXA=1THILXEA
WERAERBELCMNERD DN KL EHIE
HRZERNGHEHBERE(CT—RFE 8) -

BN FEEARRMESNEIREHEERE
0 S AP B R ATS B (R R25%) fE H B o

REMRDEEEELENTATIRBEAEERD
ERBERE -

bt i 1R

BEREAEBEBINREARAABEABREBEY
129,035,000 7t (= Z — /X & : 130,738,000/ J.)
N BB 377 X 8 A% A9 N S35 £ 494,194,558,000
B (=2 — /N4 : 3,411,778,0000%) 5+ & -

MRTTEBRE REEERTRRESFREER
BEYE BBE_TLER-T-REFRAZ
THIERER  RNABHEAABGE RN SR #
EEBRRSRENERAR -

Jie B

EETREBLMNBEE-_ZT—HFRA=THILER
BANFRHEE(ZE—RE &)
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND 11.

EQUIPMENT

The movements of property, plant and equipment of the
Group were:

o IS R B R E

Wk~ W Kk i

AEEME BERRBIEHOT :

At 1 January Hn—H—H
Additions: NE
Property, plant and equipment W - WERH
Surplus on valuation EHAK
Disposal HE
Depreciation e
Exchange realignment b 0 B
Closing net book value K FREEFE

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—t% —ExE
~A=+H SIS K= e ]
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FERT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (EZ)
1,684,984 1,760,457
53,022 88,377

= (13,790)

()] -
(30,876) (69,578)
21,348 (90,482)
1,728,473 1,684,984

The carrying amount of leasehold land and buildings
shown above are situated on:

EXHRAEELMRBTFREENSTAT

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E-t& —E—RF
~A=+H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (EFE %)
Land in Hong Kong under medium-term UREENFHRBEE L
leases —
Land in the PRC under medium-term leases {7 AR EIH) RHATH & £t 9,080
9,080

19
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 11. W3 ~ BB K i (48
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

As at 30 June 2017, hotel properties and the film studio RZE—+FE A=+ BEDERFZART
had not been revaluated and had been included in the BETEMR YR-_FT—tFA=THEEL
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of X 25 51 49 £ 480,341,000 7T 694,163,000/ 7T
approximately HK$480,341,000 and approximately FIARE I HE -

HK$694,163,000 respectively as at 30 June 2017.

Hotel properties and film studio were revaluated on 31 BEMERTZRHER T /*\$+_)5177L =]
December 2016 by RHL Appraisal Limited, an Hamﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ C—REAREE &R
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to EMBEIAEREXEME Efﬁ%ﬁ EHBHW
the Group. The revaluation surplus of approximately 13,790,0005% 7T) 1 Bx i@ F &9 3E & AT 15 T (8
HK$13,790,000 net of applicable deferred income taxes of 3,448,000/ 7T) B 5 A BUFE 49 /310,342,000 T H)
approximately HK$3,448,000 was credited to properties YEEHFEE - Trﬁ@E%%& R EEITE
revaluation reserve in the amount of approximately b AERER-ZE-—RF+RA=+—HEEZ
HK$10,342,000. If hotel properties and the film studio had B 785 Bl ’37%451 947,000 JT 5.648,479,000/% T
not been revalued, it would have been included in the FFAREMBHRE -

consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$451,947,000 and approximately
HK$648,479,000 respectively as at 31 December 2016.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest E@ﬁﬁﬁ’%%%mﬂﬁ@ﬁ% CENEE R
and best use of the properties is their current use. The THRRAERBEAR FUORFEAARBEEHD
reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value HERIINEX -

balances is stated in the above table.

There has been no change to the valuation techniques A ERMwEES -  TRIEHABOAE
during the period. The following table gives information EREBEEDENRRECLERFTBMBERMR
about how the fair values of these hotel properties and FEHAHBB)NEER U\&ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁg
film studio are determined (in particular, the valuation AREHEIZHAEENITEEREEmMYEHN
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value AREEBR(FE-—REE=MR) -

hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which
the key inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.
Significant
Fair value unobservable
Element hierarchy Valuation techniques and key inputs inputs Range/Amount Sensitivity
EXFURE wE
T AREESR EEAFREIEGARE AR SE HBE
Hotel properties Level 3 Direct comparison method by assuming sales  Discounts on —10% to 10% The higher the
transactions as available in the relevant quality of premiums or
market (i.e. sales transaction price per hotel properties discounts, the higher
room) or lower the fair
values
B IE ) % E=®] HELEE  BRIBETSLEHERS (G HYEBEED -10%£10% @Bk %
BEEEBNHEERSE) Fiil BEES
Film studio Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs approach Replacement RMB337,000,000 The higher the costs of
(based on current cost of replacement of the costs of constructions, the
improvements, less allowance for physical constructions higher the fair
deterioration and all relevant forms of on the land values
obsolescence and optimisation)

Market approach (based on the comparable Discounts on —10% to 10% The higher the
accommodation value sqg. ft. observed from quality of discounts, the lower
the market) properties the fair values

IR E=H FESERNE(ERYMERECAEMNBERA - LT EERS  ARY¥337,0000007C ZEKADRS AR
BREFERAR-VEEFANKREREL BERAE [ERES)
e 3R
TEE(ERETSBEEAENAILREENE HWELRN -10%Z£10% HEDS @ 2AERE

FTRIEME) i
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12.
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o IS R B R E

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 11. W3 ~ B Kkl (%)
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying B(‘iﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬁ ) %K%@ﬂﬂ}i@’%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ;ﬁ
amount of film studio held under finance leases of the EL‘J/HE@W@W%Q“%OO_O%E(:;ﬁ_/_\iﬂ':ﬂ
Group was approximately HK$9,114,000 (31 December =+1—H 9,080,000/ 7T) °
2016: HK$9,080,000).
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. #E&EME
The Group’s properties interests held under ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%gﬁfmiﬁﬁﬂy%@%ﬁ
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital EEFWW%Eﬁ}*FﬁL/L@E@ﬁE 3 BAE
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair REEMRD AR «
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RF
~A=+H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (=)
Fair value ARE
At 1 January n—HA—H 32,200
Net increase in fair value recognised 18z AR A A 7 B 1
in profit or loss I EE 1,500
Closing net book value HR FRIEEFE 33,700
Changes in unrealised loss on ANEAE S FANFTAE RS
revaluation of investment properties  EfLHIFEWE R EEE
for the period/year included in profit 18 H) & &)
or loss 1,500
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13. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13.

14.

The Group’s land lease prepayments comprise:

HA LT

AEEWNANLHBERRE:

30 June 31 December
2017 2016

—ZT—t% —T—RF
~A=+H =S ETr—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FERT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (BEZ)

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEENZ DM :
Non-current asset ERMEBEE

463,183 470,061

The land lease prepayments represented the premium
recognised when acquiring the land interests in the PRC
by operating lease arrangement with the local authority.

BENLEERETRARMTERNEEHEE
2 PEHE IS I B 2 B T RE AR RO R (B -

30 June 31 December
2017 2016

—E-t& —E-RF
"A=+H +ZRA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (18 E%)

1,079 1,079
(1,079) -

INTANGIBLE ASSET 14. EHE
At 1 January Hn—H—H

Disposal of a subsidiary HE B AR

Closing net book value AR/ FREEFE

1,079

The Group’s intangible asset represents the licence plate
held by a then wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
In Industrial Co., Limited, which enables the Group’s
vehicle to travel and hang licence plate in both the PRC
and Hong Kong.

On 13 March 2017, the Company has entered into the
share transfer agreement with an independent third party
in respect of the transfer of the subsidiary. After the
disposal, the Group does not hold any intangible assets.

AREZEBEAERBERARRAZZEMBR
A(FREEXEBRABDFENAFAREER/RN
TREEFEMMITR REHZPEER

RIZE—+FE=A+=0 ARAIDE—LBILE
= BEEM B ARG R EE RS o BB
REBETVESETRNERLEE -
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging from
30 to 90 days to its trade customers. The ageing analysis
of trade receivables based on the invoice dates, net of
allowance for bad and doubtful debts, are stated as
follows:

15.

SR MBS R AR L

JE W 2 5 sk R

AEEREESEPREHNERR KR BI0E90
H-BRESFIRREZEHLZ (MK RERE
B MRE ST :

0 to 60 days 0£60H

61 to 90 days 61£90H
91 to 180 days 91E180H
Over 180 days B #180H

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E-t& T -RF
"A=+H +ZRA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (‘&)
19,141 2,881

539 144

2,988 1,128
2,842 2,545
25,510 6,693

Included in the balances are debtors with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$5,830,000 (31 December
2016: HK$3,668,000) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
related to a number of customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
Directors believe that no impairment loss is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

The Directors considered that the fair values of trade
receivables are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these amounts have short maturity
periods at their inception.

AT B IE R E 4 55,830,000 T (Z T —7%
F+=-F=+—H:3,668,000/8 T) K fEUY KB R
HEADAY AEELEAZSERREEL
WEEEREE CDERPETRBRENERESK
BARAEEETBETERCHRREINES - 1R
BRAKS ZEFHE ARZEEFNEEE
EWESEAEE  ZSEHDERBATZEKE -
MBERZSRBIELREBIERE ANEEL
ERZESEGRBEAERR -

E=RR ARBREZREANELREHANA
FE MEAAEHERABEYEERESR -

23



ATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

190 25 15 4 SO Ak 4 A PR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sre B R MG
16. TRADE PAYABLES 16. AT E 5 s H
The Group has been granted by its suppliers’ credit AEBEREEMHERNE TI0EC0AMNEEH - B
periods ranging from 30 to 60 days. The ageing analysis BEONBEREZAMETNMNRE ST
of trade payables based on the invoice dates are stated
as follows:
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tHF T —RF
~A=+H +=-—A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET F& T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (EE%)
0-30 days 0%30H 129 934
31-60 days 31£60H = 224
61-90 days 61Z290H 116 164
91-180 days 912180H 28 79
Over 180 days B #180H 41 445
1,846
17. LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS 17. BRI &3
Loans from shareholders were unsecured, with the interest BRENERABERF - FENFO%EI5% + WA
rate ranging from 0%-15% and repayable within one to R—E-_FREE -
two years.
18. BONDS 18. f& 7%
Newly issued bonds HEBTES

During the six months ended 30 June 2017, the Company
issued new bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$135,870,000 (2016: HK$129,982,000) at par value in
accordance with the conditional placing and underwriting
agreement entered into between the Company and the
independent placing agent. As of 30 June 2017, newly
issued bonds have a maturity from 1 year to 8.5 years
(2016: from 1 year to 8 years) from the date of issue and
bear coupon interest ranging from 2.00% to 8.38% per
annum (2016: from 4.66% to 12.00% per annum), accrued
daily and payable annually in arrears. A default rate
ranging from 2.00% to 8.38% per annum (2016: from
4.66% to 12.00%) will be charged on any sum due and
payable under the newly issued bonds from the due date
to the date of actual payment in full. The newly issued
bonds were denominated in HKS.

HE-ZT—+FXA=1+AHLA~EAR  KAARRE
AAREBUREEREI YN AKHERERBH
e o REERTTAS B A135,870,000/ 7T (=
T — N 1 129,982,000 L) M EH - NZF—
tEXNAZTH FRTEFRETAPREH —
ENBAF(ZTE—AF:—EN\F)IH BEXN
FEHFE200%E8.38% (ZF— NG HF4.66%%
12.00%) M EBA R A BAEFIRBRIMA T
HE - MAEINMBTEFNEMNIBENS
AR BAEER 2 AREEF2.00%
Z8.38% (ZZ — /N F 1 4.66% £=12.00%) K i £ F|
BB o FBETEFABTIE -



INTERIM REPORT 2017 —ZF— L4 i 25

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BB R IR

18. BONDS (CONTINUED) 18. f& # (#f)

AHBARRREFHEENAT

The movement for the period on the bonds of the

Company was as follows:

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—T—t% —T—REF

~B=+H +=A=+—8

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERX FET

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZ) (& ER)

Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&% 506,803 273,970

Proceeds from issue of the bonds BITEFBRE 135,870 242 678

Transaction cost allocated to the liability DB Z&EHLHH

component R 5 KA (32,457) (18,045)

Effective interest expense (note 6) BEERA B W ite6) 34,842 50,944

Interest paid during the period/year A/ FREMF A (37,378) (39,744)

Repayment during the period/year R/ FREE (8,582) (3,000)

Closing balance HR FRE S 599,098 506,803
Carrying amount repayable: AR THRAEREZ

BRTH A

Within one year —FR 71,561 61,115
More than one year but not exceeding —FUFETNBBERF

two years 326,110 212,325
More than two years but not exceeding MEAELBERNBBAF

five years 108,905 134,266

More than five years HFELA E 92,522 99,097

599,098 506,803
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19.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
CB4

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of
remaining equity interests in Head Return Limited and
Expand Pacific Limited, the Company issued convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$420,000,000 (“CB4”) on 2 October 2013. The CB4
has a maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and
bears coupon interest at 4% per annum, accrued daily
and payable annually in arrears. A default rate of 8% per
annum will be charged on any sum due and payable
under the CB4 from the due date to the date of actual
payment in full. The CB4 was denominated in HKS.

The conversion price of the CB4, subject to the anti-
dilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.112 per conversion
share. As a result of the share consolidation announced
by the Company on 7 July 2014 and the rights issue
announced by the Company on 4 August 2014 and in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the CB4,
adjustment to the conversion price of the CB4 from
HK$0.112 per conversion share to HK$1.063 per
conversion share has become effective. The outstanding
principal amount of the CB4 can be converted in whole or
in part (in minimum amount of HK$420,000 or an integral
multiple thereof) into conversion shares from the date of
issue of the CB4 up to and including the date falling on
the 7th day immediately prior to the maturity date.

The holder of the CB4 shall be entitled to request the
Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly) by way of
allotment and issue of new shares of the Company at the
conversion price on the due day of the interest payment in
lieu of payment by cash. Such interest conversion
arrangement is only applicable to the 4% per annum
interest payment and is not applicable to the 8% default
interest payment. The Company may redeem the CB4 at
any time prior to the maturity date in whole or in part (in
minimum amount of HK$420,000 or an integral multiple
thereof) at the principal amount of such CB4 thereof plus
interest accrued thereon up to the actual date of
redemption.

19.

I e Bt £ %
BOHTREES

EARBERERARARATFHEARAAL
BRAERENFSRE  AARR=ZZT—=F1+A
—HETAS 4% A420,000,0000 T HY B #2 A% (&
F(EMATRBEES]) - FUBATRRESR
EITHHBN =G SFEXR4%  FEE
A2 Y ESFERBRIAANMSE o HREE

MEmMRBREFNT M REMSSRE Al
NHAEER 28I N ABRTFEsRENFIX
TAF B o BIURL AR E F A B LA o

B PO 4L AT R BB 5 B 3 IR B 28 B AR 3 e B 10 0.112
B AR -RRETHEMRAR - ARAR
AR_Z-OFEtAERERRNAHER_-F
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(CONTINUED)

CB4 (Continued)

The CB4 has been valued at the issuance date by a
qualified professional valuer. The fair value of the liability
component of the CB4 was estimated at the issue date
using an equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond
with call option. The residual amount (being the difference
between the fair value of the CB4 at issue date and the
fair value of the liability component on initial recognition) is
assigned as the equity component and is included in
equity heading convertible bond equity reserve. The
liability component is subsequently measured at amortised
cost.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component of the CB4 was calculated using future
repayments discounted at an estimated discount rate of
15.683%. Subsequently, interest expense on the CB4 is
calculated using the effective interest method by applying
effective interest rate of 16.47%. On initial recognition, the
amount of equity component of CB4 was approximately
HK$120,540,000

In August 2014, the Company has early redeemed the
CB4 with aggregate principal amounts of approximately
HK$215,460,000 by cash at approximately
HK$208,996,000 which Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”), the
chairman of the company, a non-executive Director and a
holder of the CB4, offered to waive the accrued interest
up to the date of repayment and to provide a discount of
3% on the principal amounts. A loss on redemption of the
CB4 of approximately HK$25,252,000, which represented
the difference between the redemption price allocated to
liability component of the CB4 and the carrying amount of
the liability component of the CB4 at the redemption date,
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2014. In June 2016, the Company has early settled the
CB4 with aggregate principal amounts of HK$9,869,000,
early settled by the issue of loan from Mr. Sin. A loss on
redemption of the CB4 of approximately HK$193,000,
which represented the difference between the redemption
price allocated to the liability component of the CB4 and
the carrying amount of the liability component of the CB4
at the redemption date, has been recognised. The CB4
was valued at the redemption date by a qualified
professional valuer. The fair values of the liability
component and the equity component of the redeemed
CB4 at redemption date were derived by means of the
same method used at the issue date. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, CB4 were fully settled by the
issue of several fixed borrowings and loans from
shareholders.
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19.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(CONTINUED)

CB5

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of Lux
Unicorn Limited, the Company issued convertible bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$300,000,000
(“CB5”) on 15 April 2015. The CB5 has a maturity of 3
years from the date of issue and bears coupon interest at
9% per annum, accrued daily and payable annually in
arrears. The conversion price of CB5, subject to the anti-
dilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion
share. The CB5 was denominated in HK$.

The conversion price of the CB5, subject to the usual
adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion share. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB5 can be
converted in whole or in part (in minimum amount of
HK$300,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares from the date of issue of the CB5 up to
and including the date falling on the 5th day immediately
prior to the maturity date.

The holder of the CB5 shall be entitled to request the
Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly) by way of
allotment and issue of new shares of the Company at the
conversion price on the due day of the interest payment in
lieu of payment by cash by giving not less than 7
business days’ written notice prior to the due date for
payment of interest. Such interest conversion arrangement
is only applicable to the 9% per annum interest payment.
The Company may redeem the CB5 at any time prior to
the maturity date in whole or in part (in minimum amount
of HK$300,000 or an integral multiple thereof) at the
principal amount of such CB5 thereof plus interest
accrued thereon up to the actual date of redemption by
giving to the bond holder not less than 10 business days’
written notice of its intention to make such redemption.

The fair value of the liability component of the CB5 was
calculated using future repayments discounted at an
estimated discount rate of 11.28% per annum. The
residual amount of approximately HK$46,697,000 (being
the difference between the fair value of the CB5 at issue
date and the fair value of the liability component on initial
recognition) is assigned as the equity component and is
included in equity heading convertible bond equity
reserve. The liability component is subsequently stated at
fair value, with changes recorded in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

In May and July 2016, CB5 with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$84,600,000 and HK$35,400,000 were
converted into 470,000,000 ordinary shares and
196,666,666 ordinary shares of the Company in total at a
conversion price of HK$0.18 per share respectively. In
June 2015, CB5 with aggregate principal amounts of
HK$79,800,000 were converted into 443,333,333 ordinary
shares of the Company in total at a conversion price of
HK$0.18 per share. During the year ended 31 December
2016, Mr. Sin and five holders of CB5 offered to waive the
accrued interest up to the date of conversion of
approximately HK$12,513,000.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(CONTINUED)

CB5 (Continued)
CB5 is due to Mr. Sin.

HK$107,184,000.
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As at 30 June 2017, the
outstanding principal amount of CB5 is approximately

SR MBS R AR L

19. Wl i A8 2% (48)

FEM TR RS ()

ERHAIHRBRESFREELEE
A=+H"' K E}%%ﬁ?ﬁtT?ﬁH&ﬁ%ﬁ’M&ﬁéﬁﬁ

#9107,184,00078 7T °

T FER

CB4 CB5 Total
EMRTTR ERMTTR
% 5 % KES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Balance at 1 January 2016 (audited) RZE—ARF-A—BN&EH
(1R E%Z) 151,382 226,068 377,450
Effective interest expenses EBRM SR 14,290 — 14,290
Transfer to interest payable EEEEMNAE — (9,018) (9,018)
Interest paid during the year FREMFIE (302) — (302)
Wavier of interest of convertible bond BRI RESFHFE — (12,513) (12,513)
Fair value changes NREE — 22,200 22,200
Converted into ordinary shares HpELBak — (115,924) (115,924)
Early settled by the issue of loan from BBBEITRREER
shareholder RELEN (9,869) — (9,869)
Settled by the issue of other borrowings and iﬂ%ﬂ,ﬁ\ﬁﬁfﬁ“&%?
loans from shareholders wE (155,501) — (155,501)
Balance at 31 December 2016 and RZE—XR"F+=A
1 January 2017 (audited) =+—BRkRZZE—+tF
—A—BAME%
(1R E%) - 110,813 110,813
Effective interest expenses BERAEMAX — 5,389 5,389
Transfer to interest payable EEREEEMNTE — (9,018) (9,018)
Balance at 30 June 2017 (unaudited) RZZE—tEFAA=1+AH
VR (R ER) — 107,184 107,184
CB4 CB5 Total
Uik £A#
REES TREES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Carrying amount repayable ARUTHRAEEZ
AREE
Within one year —FR — 107,184 107,184
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20.

PROMISSORY NOTE
PN 1

On 15 April 2015, the Company issued promissory note
with principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (the “PN 1”) at
par value in accordance with the sale and purchase
agreement dated 22 December 2014 entered into between
Elegant Motion Enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and Mr. Sin, the chairman of
the Company and a non-executive Director. The PN 1 has
a maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and bears
coupon interest at 9% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. The PN 1 was denominated in
HKS.

During the six month ended 30 June 2017, on initial
recognition, the fair value of the PN 1 was calculated by
discounting future repayments at an estimated discount
rate of 12.37%. Subsequently, interest expense on the PN
1 was calculated using the effective interest method by
applying an effective interest rate of 12.41% per annum.

The movement for the period on the PN 1 was as follows:

20. &%

&R EH

R-FB—RAFEWNA+HA ARARRBEART—H
2EMBAREBCEERAREARREFER
—ZMITES AL YERAE T —NE+
ZAZt+-BrEEHE  REBERTASESEA
80,000,000/ T 2 # i E B ([F R EHR1) o & A

BT AR S I - 2 B R 9%
SERH  WAREFHRIM B3 EH1IA
T A -

BE_Z—LFRNA=ZTHLERER  ROLSER
B AR EEIZ AR E TR GBI E12.37% 8,
BRFERHEH - H1& - ALEBRIEBERF
KERFEBRANE1R241%EHMNEFX -

AARBEIRNPAZEEHNAT

PN 1
7 5 E R
HK$’000
F&T
Balance at 1 January 2016 (audited) RZE—RF—A—BZ#&%
(&ER) 79,576
Effective interest expense ERFERAX 9,279
Transfer to interest payables R EEMNF A (7,200)
Balance at 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZE-—R"F+ZA=+—8BK
(audited) —E—tF-A-Bz#&#%
(&ER) 81,655
Effective interest expense ERFEAX 4,723
Transfer to interest payables R EEMNNE (7,200)
Balance at 30 June 2017 (unaudited) R-F—tEA=+EMER
(REEZ) 79,178




21. COMMITMENTS 21.

(@)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BB R IR

Commitments under operating lease

The Group had the following future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

INTERIM REPORT 2017 —ZF— L4 i

3]
@ EEEEXR

AEEBRBEIARELEHERTATRE

REAENKEHE  HHBERMT :

30 June
2017

—E—+tF
~A=+H
HK$°000
FHET

(Unaudited)

(REER)

Within one year —F R

11,616

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRAFBPEEERTF) 32,277

Over five years i AF

214,037

257,930

Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

(b) BERIE

31 December
2016

—E—RF
+=-A=+—H
HK$'000
FHET
(Audited)
(&%)

12,665
35,091
98,943

146,699

REBEBATEARALE

30 June
2017

=
~A=+H
HK$’000
FET
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Contracted but not provided for: EHEREE S 3 -E
Construction of properties (note) YRR (W)

Authorised but not contracted for: EHERRETL -
Construction of properties (note) MERE (ML)

345,185

31 December
2016

—ZE-RF
+=—A=+—8
HK$'000
FHEIT
(Audited)
(&%)

128,734

334,896
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AR

22.

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Capital commitments (Continued)

Note: Capital commitment for construction of
properties related to capital commitment for
construction of film studio and hotel in
Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount
was approved by the Directors according to
the land lease agreements signed between
the Group and the local authority in Foshan,
the PRC, in relation to the leasing of lands
for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel
operations.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements, during the six months
ended 30 June 2017: () no interest was paid to any
related company (while interest of approximately
HK$455,000 was paid to a related company during the six
months ended 30 June 2016); (i) interest of approximately
HK$30,682,000 (2016: HK$22,406,000) was paid by the
Group to a shareholder of the Company; and (i) no
bondholder offered to waive any interest of CB5 (while
accrued interest of CB5 up to the date of conversion of
HK$1,829,000 was waived by a shareholder of the
Company during the six months ended 30 June 2016).

The emoluments paid or payable to key management
personal during the six months ended 30 June 2017 was
approximately HK$12,324,000 (2016: HK$2,333,000).

21.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the period under review, the Group reported
revenue of approximately HK$86.11 million, representing
an increase of approximately 212.45% as compared to the
revenue in the corresponding period in 2016. The
increase in revenue was mainly due to the income from
the substantial increase in the number of visitors, and the
rental income from the film production crews using the
Group’s film shooting base, while part of the revenue was
generated from sales of goods, filming supporting service
and the hotel in the PRC, and the artiste management
and event coordination business in Hong Kong.

Staff costs for the period under review increased to
approximately HK$56.39 million from approximately
HK$19.16 million in the corresponding period in 2016. An
increase of approximately HK$37.23 million in staff cost
was mainly due to the increased employee benefit
expenses. The loss of the Group for the period under
review is mainly due to staff costs of approximately
HK$56.39 million, which include equity settled share-
based payment expenses of approximately HK$33.94
million.

Finance costs for the period under review increased by
approximately HK$8.68 million by reason of the interest
charged on additional bonds issued in 2016 and the
interest charged on additional other borrowings in 2016
and 2017.

Other operating expenses for the period under review
increased to approximately HK$46.09 million from
approximately HK$44.24 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$1.85 million.

For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the Group
recorded a net loss approximately HK$129.04 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 1.30% as
compared to the corresponding period in 2016. The loss
was mainly due to the share option expenses,
amortization of land lease prepayments and depreciation
of property, plant and equipment. The decrease of net
loss is due to the increase in the number of visitors and
hotel’s occupancy rate and effective cost control.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan city, Guangdong province, the Group’s
Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project (the “Project”)
has a total developed land area of 444,000 square metres
and is a unique studio which incorporates tourism and
recreational facilities such as film shooting areas, theme
parks, hotel and performing arts complexes.

In the first half of 2017, Xigiao National Arts Films Studio
(the “Studio”) attracted a total of approximately 450,000
visitors, with events such as the 2017 Lunar New Year
Celebration, Snow Paradise Event, Students Study Tour,
Dreamy Windmill Festival 2017, representing an increase of
approximately 548.06% in the total number of visitors as
compared to the corresponding period in 2016.

The Snow Paradise Event was the PRC’s first ever world-
class snow-themed event, which featured a 150-metre
long outdoor skiing slideway, the first of its kind was held
in the southern China, and had been arousing great
interest among the general public. In addition, the Studio
held a Dreamy Windmill Festival 2017 based on Dutch
traditions in March 2017 including handmade mini windmill
workshop for parents and children, Windmill Delight (& &
Z7#5) and Dutch-style carnival.

In addition, the Group held “Water City” ({&F £J7K3¥)) and
“Candy Kingdom” ({#SR EE)) in July 2017 to cater for
increasing tourist-driven demand. “Water City” is an
amusement park integrating leisure and recreation, sports,
family activities, Animation-Comic-Game (ACG) culture and
sports matches. The “Candy Kingdom” is the first and
foremost physical licensed grand exhibition of the
phenomenal mobile game “Candy Crush Saga” in the
PRC. It faithfully replicates the fantastic landscape in the
original game in each and every aspect so that both
adults and children may enjoy exploring the mysterious
and fascinating candy kingdom just like in the mobile
game. These activities attracted additional visitors and are
expected to generate significant income for the Group in
2017.

Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao
National Arts Film Studio Project. It covers 374,000
square meters, including a lake of 120,000 square meters
and numbers of indoor and outdoor studios equipped
with the best and comprehensive ancillary facilities in
order to provide the Southern China and foreign shooting
crews with the most realistic and delicate scenes.

During the first six months of 2017, there were
approximately 31 production crews filmed in the shooting
base in view of the extensive choices, supreme
geographical location and multifunctional ancillary services
it offers.
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Witnessing the development of China’s film industry as
well as the significant growth of scenic demands from
production crews, the Group manages to cater for their
various needs by enriching its high-profile indoor studio
for the full development of its film shooting base. In
addition, the Group is seeking cooperation with
resourceful companies to provide more comprehensive
ancillary services such as shooting equipment leasing,
professional editing services, etc., to enhance the Group’s
competitive edges.

Wedding Photography

The Group leased an area of approximately 20 mu
(13,333.383 square meters) within the Studio for a term of
12 years under an agreement with a renowned domestic
wedding photography chain group in the fourth quarter of
2013 to develop its new wedding photography business.
Besides, the wedding photography company invested
RMB10 million for the construction of scenic spots in
different styles such as European, Korean and Japanese
styles and guaranteed there will be at least 28,800
couples taking wedding photos in the scenic spots per
year. The annual income of this arrangement is expected
to be no less than approximately RMB1.2 million starting
from 2016.

In addition, the Group is negotiating with several jeweler,
Chinese and western bakery, Chinese style wedding gown
and wedding planning company in order to provide one-
stop service for wedding couples. The Studio is expected
to become a comprehensive wedding hot spot.

Hotel

The 5-star Hotel namely National Arts Resort Hotel (the
“Hotel”) next to the Studio has officially commenced
operation in November 2015. The Hotel provides 350
suites facilitated from deluxe suites to economic standard
rooms. In addition, the Hotel is equipped with a variety of
recreational facilities such as SPA, Modern Swimming
Pool and Chess Room. Apart from the recreation, the
Hotel also provides commercial services such as business
centre, meeting rooms and lecture halls.

With the development of the Hotel and the Studio
becoming mature and its popularity having increased, and
the number of tourists continuously grows, the Group will
introduce additional facilities such as beauty services,
barbecue facilities and other recreational facilities. And for
the catering, it will provide more dining options and
maintain high quality food and services.
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Film Production

Entertainment culture is the core value of the Group’s
business. The Group is committed to producing and
investing in movie and online TV programme to promote
the culture and the spirit of entertaining.

The movies invested by the Group, “Ip Man — The Final
Fight” (3f — #4%—8) was selected as the opening
film of the “Hong Kong International Film Festival” in
2013, and was selected as the recommended film in the
“20th Hong Kong Film Critics Society Award”. “Golden
Brother” (55 A& 7] BA&5), another movie invested by the
Group, also won the best small and medium cost film
award in China Image Film Festival. These achievements
were really encouraging.

“Our Days” (¥ I#I6EFT), the charity movie invested by
the Group during 2016, will be shown in cinema soon in
the second half of 2017. The theme of “Our Days” is in
line with the current social status, laden with educational
significance. The Group believes that it will be able to
seize certain market share in the film screening industry
and enhance the corporate image as well as brand
awareness of the Group.

Apart from the above, the movie, “Best Friend” (Jt#), the
online TV programme “L LB 55" and “Let Go of that
Monster”( 5% 7 A0 [ & £) invested by the Group will also
be released in cinemas in the PRC and on the internet in
the second half of 2017 respectively.

Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
collaborated with its joint venture for the development of
cinema business in a large shopping mall in a
transportation hub area of Zhu Hai, Guangdong, the PRC.

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture. The
cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than
730 seats, and have commenced its operation since May
2014, which promotes comprehensive development of the
Group’s entertainment and culture business.

Artiste Management

To enhance the popularity of the Group’s artists such as
Rose Chan, Brian Yuen, Rachel Chau and Lemon Yip, the
Group has arranged a variety of performance
opportunities including the participation in the charity
movie, “Our Days” (¥ 1#I6EH), an online TV programme
“EIMENE 27, dramas and being the show host of the
Lunar New Year Celebration and guest performers for the
“Dazzling Night in Shanghai” gala (1§ #7%& £ /8).
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Besides, the Group’s artistes will perform and participate
in different shows and events. The Group will also identify
suitable opportunities for them to serve as brand
representatives and involve in commercial shooting and
drama.

With the huge market of domestic movies, the Group will
continue to recruit artistes with potential in the future to
cope with the vast demand in the market and expand the
artiste management segment, hoping that it will become
one of the major income sources of the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
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30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-REF

~A=+H +=-—A=+—8

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHR TH7T

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

Current assets mEEE 165,990 81,689
Current liabilities REAE 619,212 378,832
Current ratio VLS 26.8% 21.6%

Current ratio as at 30 June 2017 was 26.8% (31
December 2016: 21.6%). As at 30 June 2017, the Group’s
total positive cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$5.06 million (31 December 2016: total
negative cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$4.22 million).

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of an
interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2017
(2016: Nil).

R-E—+tFNA=ZTENRIE X AE26.8% (—ZF
—RNFE+ZA=+-—"H8:216%) c RZZT— L FX
A=+tH AEBEBRSIHRLE S RIRELSEAR
475,060,000 L (ZE—"NF+-_A=+—H: 8
HEE e RIRESEHEE 44,220,000 7T) °
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BEETREBNBE-_Z—tFRA=THIEXE
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Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

ARARGR BT+ L AEB AR
1L - ARARAEBSERR - R_F—+ &
NA=+H

REBERK -

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 17 October 2002. The capital of
the Company comprises only ordinary shares. As at 30
June 2017, 4,498,481,222 ordinary shares were issued
and fully paid.

» 7 54,498,481,22204 B 31T N BB IR

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
e L OVER - = <F+-A=+—8

Amount Relative % Amount Relative %
&8 HE % S8 ¥ %

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(R B8 &) (EEZ)

HK$°000 HK$'000

TE&ET FE T
Bank overdrafts BITE X 6,806 8,501 0.4%
Loans from shareholders PREAE R 490,441 462,344 23%
Borrowings BE 232,629 179,538 8.9%
Bonds E% 599,098 506,803 251%
Convertible bonds AR (B 5 107,184 110,813 5.5%
Promissory note A EE 79,178 81,655 41%
Finance lease obligation B 75 7 & R R 21,957 23,406 1.2%
Total borrowings BEHEsE 1,537,293 1,373,060 68.2%
Equity = 668,385 639,978 31.8%
Total capital employed FriE e &N 2,205,678 2,013,038 100.0%

The Group’s gearing ratio (note) was approximately 69.7%
as at 30 June 2017 (31 December 2016: 68.2%). If the
bonds, convertible bonds (liability component), promissory
note and finance lease obligation as stated above were to
be excluded, the underlying gearing ratio would be 33%
(81 December 2016: 32.3%). The increase in the gearing
ratio in current period was due to increased loans from
third parties and shareholders during the period.

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated by total borrowings over total
capital employed.

RZF—tFRNA=TH AEBENEELLEH
2R RET% (ZFE—RNEFE+ A=+ —R8:
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The Completion of a Connected Transaction

On 20 January 2017, the Company has entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Shareholder Subscription
Agreement”) with a non-executive Director and the
subscription agreements (the “PRC Subscription
Agreements”) with the PRC subscribers respectively.
Pursuant to the Shareholder Subscription Agreement and
the PRC Subscription Agreements, an aggregate of
500,091,740 subscription shares shall be allotted and
issued at a subscription price of HK$0.223 per
subscription share under the specific mandate then
proposed to be sought from the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 6 April 2017. The
subscriptions are conditional upon, among others, the
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting the
listing of, and permission to deal in the subscription
shares. If such condition is not fulfilled, the subscriptions
will not proceed. The subscription price payable under the
Shareholder Subscription Agreement shall be settled
against the interests on debt payable to the non-
executive Director, and the subscription price payable
under the PRC Subscription Agreements shall be settled
against the debt owed to the PRC subscribers. The
details of the subscriptions are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 20 January 2017 and
the Company’s circular dated 17 March 2017. The
subscription shares were allotted and issued to the
subscribers on 21 April 2017.

Future Plans for Substantial Investments or Capital
Assets

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 25 August 2016 and the clarification
announcement dated 26 October 2016, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Lux Unicorn Limited has
entered into a joint cooperation agreement with Foshan
Tengyi Culture Distribution Company Limited (8 1L 7 & 2
AL EE BB A F]) in respect of joint cooperation in
investing in a water park and eco-tourism project on the
Ruxi land parcel in the Studio.

The water park and eco-tourism project is currently under
negotiation and discussion, and any updates will be made
available to shareholders of the Company when necessary
and appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, the Group
did not have any plan for substantial investments or
capital assets.
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Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in Hong
Kong dollars. During the six months ended 30 June
2017, most of the transactions, assets and liabilities of the
Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. During the period under review, since the
Group had both Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
receipts and payments, the net Renminbi exposure was
not significant. The Board considers that the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk was not significant;
therefore, no hedging transaction was made during the
period under review.

Commitments

Details of the Group’s commitments are set out in note
21 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

According to the land lease agreements signed between
Lux Unicorn Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the local authorities in Foshan, the PRC, in
relation to the leasing of lands for development of tourism
and related entertainment business and hotel operations,
the Group shall invest no less than RMB300 million in the
projects or the Group is liable to pay RMB4 million as
damages to the local authorities. The completion of
constructions and commencement of operations of the
projects shall take place within three and four years
respectively from the signing of the lease agreements.
The Directors are in the opinion that the conditions set
out in the leasing agreements could be achieved and
therefore no provision for liabilities is necessary.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each of the Company (“Shares”)

o o e

EHERERTBAERBA - M
38 Tz Oy B 18 27 2 HE 2% S IR A

RZZE—tFRA=ZTHE BF ARAFETH
ABRBERB 2B B ARANR R EAE(TEE
B(ExREsMMERI(ESRMEFEH))E
XVER) 2 B n - RN REFHER ZREERR
HEHEOIEXVEBETRED B2 R ERMEAAT
MERMzERMAR (BREBATREZSR
F R B GOIEREE SRR RER 2 NOR
B) IREEF R ERPIEB2MG 2 REAT
WAl 2 B MRz s MoRa - RBAIZER £
™R A SE5.461G £5.67(F 2 L E B E ANAF) KB
RZERMORRAT

1. REAGEREME0IETZEER(KRH)Z
¥E

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Interest in capital of the

Number of controlled Company

Capacity/Nature Shares held corporation EEAT

Name of Directors of interest P R Total BRTHREZ

EEHE L VE 13320 BHrEHE ATZED @zt BMHETL

(Note 1)

(Htit1)

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”) Beneficial owner 795,580,623 — 795,680,623 17.69%
(Note 2) BEREAA

B EE(REED A 72) Interest of spouse 23,352,000 — 23,352,000 0.51%

B 4B 42 =

Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”) Beneficial owner 23,352,000 — 23,352,000 0.51%
(Note 3) BEREAA

#ERa+(B&X))HF3) Interest of spouse 795,580,623 — 795,580,623 17.69%

B

Note 1: This is based on the total issued Shares as at
30 June 2017 (i.e. 4,498,481,222 Shares).

Note 2:  Mr. Sin and Ms. Law beneficially owned
818,932,623 Shares in aggregate, representing
approximately 18.20% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Mr. Sin is the spouse of
Ms. Law and for the purposes of Divisions 2
and 3 of the SFO only, Mr. Sin is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Ms. Law is
deemed or taken to be interested for by virtue
of the SFO.

Matt: WHER-T—+EFXNA=ZTHEZIHE
1T (BN4,498,481,2220% ) ©

Mage: HBEAERBXTERERBAH
818,932,623 & 11 + G ANAFIEEITH
AH#)18.20% ° kL EBBLZ T ZHAR
ERFHFRBEKNF2RE3IH M
FOAREWEARBLIBRERESR
HERHIWRAREEREERS ZRG
PR -
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Note 3:  Mr. Sin and Ms.

Law beneficially owned

818,932,623 Shares in aggregate, representing

approximately 18.20%

of the issued share

capital of the Company. Ms. Law is the spouse
of Mr. Sin and for the purposes of Divisions 2
and 3 of the SFO only, Ms. Law is deemed to
be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Sin is
deemed or taken to be interested for by virtue

of the SFO.

Long positions in the underlying Shares 2.
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BaE3 -

EEERBEXLTERERAH
818,932,623 B2 1 * M AR R B 1T
AR%118.20%  ERIBEF KB EERGIFE
OREEIDE BT AELE ZEME -
MBLZITWEARELERBEESFRS
BRI EABREEREEZ 2 RGBT
WARER -

REBRHZIFE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of the
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest shares held Company
EAXAT
CETREZ
EEHE L Vg $-1:3- Fi 5 % 15 80 B WMOE S
(Note 1)
(B7at1)
Mr. Sin Beneficial Owner 572,471,230 12.73%
Vit EmAA (Note 3) (K 7#3)
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 11,822,483 0.26%
e (5 4 &= (A 722)
Ms. Law Beneficial Owner 11,822,483 0.26%
i EnEAA (Note ) (K i#5)
Interest of Spouse (Note 4) 572,471,230 12.73%
Bic 48 4 & (47 7 4)
Ms. Sin Ho Yee Beneficial Owner 5,824,161 0.13%
Vi U= ERBEAA (Note 6) (/1 516)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 45,063,695 1.00%
R TE En#EAA (Note 7) (K1:#7)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor Beneficial Owner 4,547,024 0.10%
R K 375 A En#EAA (Note 8) (K 7#8)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick Beneficial Owner 4,547,024 0.10%
HEBHEK En#EAA (Note 9) (K 5#9)
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 4,546,896 0.10%
EECEE Em#AA (Note 10) (Mt ##10)
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim Beneficial Owner 4,513,466 0.10%

FHORELE

EmEEA

(Note 11) (f17#11)



Notes:

This is based on the total issued Shares as at 30
June 2017 (i.e. 4,498,481,222 Shares).

For the purpose of Divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO
only, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin, being the
spouse of Ms. Law, is deemed to be interested in
all the underlying Shares in which Ms. Law is
interested.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 7,964,160
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Mr. Sin on 29
September 2010 pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted on 22 July 2002 and terminated
on 29 September 2010 (“Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) under which Mr. Sin may exercise the
said options from 29 September 2010 to 2
September 2020 at an exercise price of HK$2.89
per Share; (ii) 3,360,403 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Sin on 28 March 2011 pursuant to
the share option scheme adopted on 29
September 2010 (“New Share Option Scheme”)
under which Mr. Sin may exercise the said options
from 28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at an
exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share; (iii)
556,666,667 underlying Shares which may be
exercised by Mr. Sin from 15 April 2016 to 14 April
2018 at an exercise price of HK$0.18 per Share;
and (iv) 4,480,000 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Sin on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the
New Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Sin
may exercise the said options from 16 May 2017 to
15 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$0.2456
per Share.

For the purpose of Divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO
only, by virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law, being the
spouse of Mr. Sin, is deemed to be interested in
the underlying Shares in which Mr. Sin is
interested.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 3,982,080
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Law on 29
September 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Ms. Law may exercise
the said options from 29 September 2010 and 2
September 2020 at an exercise price of HK$2.89
per Share; (ii) 3,360,403 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Ms. Law on 28 March 2011 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which Ms.
Law may exercise the said options from 28 March
2012 to 27 March 2021 at an exercise price of
HK$7.62 per Share; and (i) 4,480,000 Shares to be
issued upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Ms. Law on 16 May 2017
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme under
which Ms. Law may exercise the said options from
16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price
of HK$0.2456 per Share.

Byt
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These underlying Shares represent (i) 1,344,161
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Sin Ho Yee on
28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme under which Ms. Sin may exercise the said
options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at
an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (i)
4,480,000 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
physically settled share options granted to Ms. Sin
on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme under which Ms. Sin may exercise the said
options from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an
exercise price of HK$0.2456 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 24,888 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chow Kai Weng on
29 September 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chow may
exercise the said options from 29 September 2010
and 2 September 2020 at an exercise price of
HK$2.89 per Share; (i) 58,807 Shares to be issued
upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Mr. Chow on 28 March 2011
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme under
which Mr. Chow may exercise the said options
from 28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at an
exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (i)
44,980,000 Shares to be issued upon exercise of
the physically settled share options granted to Mr.
Chow on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chow may
exercise the said options from 16 May 2017 to 15
May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$0.2456 per
Share.

These underlying Shares represent () 33,420 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor
on 20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chan may
exercise the said options from 20 May 2010 and
19 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.38 per
Share; (i) 33,604 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chan on 28 March 2011 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which Mr.
Chan may exercise the said options from 28 March
2012 to 27 March 2021 at an exercise price of
HK$7.62 per Share; and (i) 4,480,000 Shares to be
issued upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Mr. Chan on 16 May 2017
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme under
which Mr. Chan may exercise the said options from
16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price
of HK$0.2456 per Share.
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These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,420 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Prof. Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick on 20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme under which Prof. Wong may
exercise the said options from 20 May 2010 and
19 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.38 per
Share; (i) 33,604 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Prof. Wong on 28 March 2011 pursuant
to the New Share Option Scheme under which Prof.
Wong may exercise the said options from 28
March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at an exercise price
of HK$7.62 per Share; and (i) 4,480,000 Shares to
be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Prof. Wong on 16 May
2017 pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme
under which Prof. Wong may exercise the said
options from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an
exercise price of HK$0.2456 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,292 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
on 13 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui may exercise
the said options from 13 May 2010 and 12 May
2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.66 per Share; (i)
33,604 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
physically settled share options granted to Mr. Chui
on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui may exercise
the said options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March
2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share;
and (i) 4,480,000 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chui on 16 May 2017 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which Mr.
Chui may exercise the said options from 16 May
2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price of
HK$0.2456 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 25,065 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim on
20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Li may exercise
the said options from 20 May 2010 and 19 May
2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.38 per Share; (i)
8,401 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
physically settled share options granted to Mr. Li
on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Li may exercise
the said options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March
2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share;
and (i) 4,480,000 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Li on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the
New Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Li may
exercise the said options from 16 May 2017 to 15
May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$0.2456 per
Share.
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3.  Long position in the debentures of the Company

3. REAGEHFZHE

Denomination or

Currency of unit size of the Amount of
Name of Director Capacity debenture debenture debenture
EENa 5 BHEzZERE BHEZEESFEM BEHEEHE
Mr. Sin Beneficial owner HK$ 574,470,000 HK$580,632,000
R E Exn#AA BT 574,470,000 580,632,000/ 7T
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief B EXFIIEEN  RZTE—EFA=1TH  &&

Executive or their associates had, as at 30 June 2017,
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2017, the persons or corporations, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company, who
had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV
of the SFO or had otherwise been notified to the
Company were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

E ITETHRABRESFEAZBEAMERAR
A AR AR (EE LB SR PEHRMEXV
) 2 ERBD HEROKESTHERAETARE
BEH R HERPIEXVEFETRF8D 8 2 R E A
BARRBRBRAZERIOAR (B LA LR
BRERBSLMERIIGXREFEIRAERZ
BmBORA)  IRIEEF R B E GG F352(F R
ERBRRAMELMAZEAIORE  HRIE
AIZER EMRAIFES461GEFES.67TIHRZIREAME
ARA MR ESSIARE -

I WS N YN &R
38 Iz By < HE &% Je 3% B

K-Z—tEXASTH BEAAFNREESR
9 55 16 ) SE XV B 33616 48 7 7 B 2 B R AT R
# RALECEME  FAA+THEEBAD
AEBRTEREIAARF 2 BHRABER
SFPITEET TR

%
¢l

\

REBZIFE

Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company

EERAT
Name of shareholder Capacity No. of shares held ERTEREAZ
BEEZ 514 HakHEE BMAESL
Tse Young Lai Beneficial owner 563,547,600 12.53%

W RE BEmBEEA



Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, the
Company has not been notified of any persons, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company, who
had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of
the Company passed on 22 July 2002, the Company
conditionally adopted and approved the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of which are set out
in Appendix IV to the prospectus of the Company dated
9 October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 29 September 2010,
the New Share Option Scheme was adopted and the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was terminated. The
principal terms of New Share Option Scheme are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 6 September 2010.
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme BEXAHBRERBREE

As at 30 June 2017, the share options to subscribe for an R-T—+EA=+H " BEEIEBRIEZE
aggregate of 12,096,325 shares of the Company granted B RE 5T 2155 T Al 2R B AR A T A 12,096,325 0% J&
pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme were M BERENRETE RTE—+tFA=1+H
outstanding. The details of the share options granted ZIREBERAEBREERESZ SR EEE
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 30 June HEMT:

2017 are set out as follows:

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise As at Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  Outstanding
Category price per 1 January during during during during as at
of Participants share  Date of grant Exercise period 2017  the period  the period  the period  the period 30 June 2017
3 R-B-t&
—¥-t§ ~A=+H
S2EAEH BRITHEE RHAH fEs -A-B  HARE HATE  HREXE HAEE HARTE
(HKS)
(1)
Directors 366 13 May 2010 13 May 2010-12 May 2020 33,292 - - - - 33,292
g= “T-FFREA+tZR -ET-ZEFRATZAZE
“Z-TFRATZA
Directors 3.38 20 May 2010 20 May 2010-19 May 2020 91,905 - - - - 91,905
s “E-TFRA-tE ZE-TERAC-tRE
ZZZZFRATNA
Directors 2.89 29 September 2010 29 September 2010~ 11,971,128 - - - - 11,971,128
2 September 2020
£z “E-TEAR-tAR —E-ZFEAR-tHAE
ZE-TEAAZRH
Other participants 366 13 May 2010 13 May 2010-12 May 2020 249,698 - - (249,698) - -
Ef2EAL “T-FFREA+tZR -ET-ZE€RATZAZE
“Z-TFRATZA
Other participants 2.89 29 September 2010 29 September 2010~ 539,240 - - (539,240) - -
2 September 2020
E2EAL “E-ZEAACtAR —E-ZEAA-tHAZE
ZZ-TFNAZH
Total 12,885,263 - - (788,938) - 12,096,325
ag
Note: All Share options granted under the Post-IPO Scheme are Bt at - RIEE IR A BRI AT B A 2 50 8 AR 4 A B

vested immediately. R o



New Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) held on 29 June 2017, the
scheme limit on the grant of options under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company has been refreshed to up to 449,848,122
Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the AGM
date based on 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue (excluding
share options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme) (the “Refreshed Scheme Limit”); and the
Directors are authorised, at their absolute discretion, to
grant share options to subscribe for Shares within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit in accordance with the rules of
the New Share Option Scheme; to allot, issue and deal
with the Shares pursuant to the exercise of share options
granted under the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such acts and
execute such documents for or incidental to implement
the New Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit.

Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Company has
on 16 May 2017 granted to certain eligible individuals
share options conferring rights to subscribe for an
aggregate of 288,740,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at an exercise price of HK$0.2456 per share. The closing
price of the Shares on 15 May 2017 was HK$0.246.
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BNLA4,498,481,222 8 B /TR D AE%E » BRIRE
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REHE - BB FTEIRBE AR PRI B AE
STEIFTRE 2 BTN B BITRE
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As at 30 June 2017, the share options to subscribe for an RZE—+tFXRNA=Z1+H  BEFEREAZEDR
aggregate of 296,972,987 Shares granted pursuant to the A RRE G ££206,972,987 1% I 10 7 B8 AR 4 1 R IE1T
New Share Option Scheme were outstanding. The details o RZT—tFNA=THZBREBENBERETE
of the share options granted under the New Share Option EHREREFEOT

Scheme as at 30 June 2017 are set out as follows:

Number of share options

BREXNE
Outstanding
Exercise Asat  Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled as at
Category of  price per 1 January during during during during 30 June
Participants share Date of grant  Vesting period Exercise Period 2017 the period the period the period the period 2017
|3 R-%-t%
BRk —¥-t% ~A=tH
S2EAEH fifEE RHEH HEY s -A-B HARE #MATE BRXR HREE i R AT
HKS)
(B7)
Directors 762 28 March 2011 28 March 2011 - 28 March 2012 - 8,232,987 - - - - 8,232,987
27 March 2012 27 March 2021
Bz 2% “2-——%ZA-t\HE ZE-ZfZA-t)\HZ
ZAZt\B ZE-——#ZA-t++tA ZZ--F=ZA-t+tH
Directors 559 31 March 2012 — 31 March 2012 - 605,025 - - (605,025 - -
30 March 2017
E% it S - ZE-ZE-A=t-HZE
“A=t-8 “Z-t5=A=+H
Directors 0.2456 16 May 2017 — 16 May 2017 - — 80,820,000 - - - 80,820,000
15 May 2020
g= E-t% - ZZ—tFRATAAE
AA+AA “Z-ZFRATEHA
Other 762 28 March 2011 28 March 2011 - 28 March 2012 - 1,881,825 - - (1,881,825 - -
participants 27 March 2012 27 March 2021
EfsEAL —I——% —2——%£=-f-+\BE —E--£zf-tN\HE
ZAZTNB  ZZ-ZEZfCftB  ZE--FZACf4R
Other 5.59 31 March 2012 — 31 March 2012 - 67,225 - - (67,229) - -
participants 30 March 2017
Ep2aAL —E-C& - —Z--#=f=+-AZ
ZA=t-8 ZT—+F=R=1R
Other 0.2456 16 May 2017 — 16 May 2017 - — 207,920,000 - - — 207,920,000
participants 15 May 2020
A2 EAL E-tE - Z2-t#0ATARE
AA+/A ZZ-ZFRATAHA
Total 10,787,062 288,740,000 — (2,554,079 — 296,972,987

&%




EMPLOYEE, REMUNERATION
POLICY AND TRAINING
SCHEMES

The Directors believe that the quality of its employees is
the most important factor in sustaining the Group’s
growth and improving its profitability. The Group’s
remunerates its employees based as their performances,
experience and prevailing industry practices. In addition to
basic salaries and mandatory provident fund, staff
benefits including medical coverage scheme and share
options are offered.

The Group has not experienced any significant problems
with its employees or disruption to its operation due to
labour disputes nor has it experienced any difficulties in
the recruitment and retention of experienced staff. The
Directors believed that the Group has a good working
relationship with its employees.

The Group encourages and supports the employees in
personal and professional training and also encourages a
culture of experience-sharing. The Group organises
various forms of training covering management, customers
service, financial, etc to the PRC office with support from
the Hong Kong head office. Other than the internal
training programme, the Group has also established a
continuous education scheme (the “Education Scheme”).
According to the Education Scheme, the employee who
passed the probation will be entitled to the subsidy for
the specified course approved by the management with
the maximum amount to HK$50,000.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Changes in Directors’ information since the date of the
2016 annual report of the Company are set out below:

- Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert, an independent non-
executive Director, retired as a non-executive
director of Addchance Holdings Limited, shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 3344), with effect from 23
May 2017. He has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of F8
Enterprises (Holdings) Group Limited, shares of
which are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 8347), with effect from 23 March
2017.

- Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick, an independent non-
executive Director, retired as an independent non-
executive director of Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited, shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 874), with effect from 23
June 2017.
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With effect from 30 June 2017, Dr. Lam Lee G. was
appointed as a non-executive Director, details of which
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
30 June 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this interim
report, there were no substantial changes to the
Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the six months ended 30 June 2017.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors nor their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the
Group during the six months ended 30 June 2017.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“‘Audit Committee”) in 2002 with written terms of
reference, which deal clearly with its authorities and
duties. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s annual reports and financial
statements, interim reports and quarterly reports and
discuss with the management over issues relating to
auditing, internal control and financial reporting. The Audit
Committee now comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak
Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee. The Group’s unaudited
results for the six months ended 30 June 2017 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results has complied
with applicable accounting standards and requirements
and that adequate disclosures have been made.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance practices and
procedures with an aim to maximizing the shareholders’
interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability. In this respect, to the
best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied
with all of the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules during the six months ended 30 June
2017.

The Company has prepared a corporate governance
report in accordance with Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules attached to the 2016 annual report of the
Company.

MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the six months ended 30 June
2017.

CHANGE OF AUDITORS

BDO Limited has resigned as the auditors of the Group
with effect from 1 December 2014 and HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited was appointed as the auditors of
the Group with effect from 1 December 2014.

On behalf of the Board

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
Law Po Yee

Vice Chairperson, Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10 August 2017

INTERIM REPORT 2017 —ZF— L4 i

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
BT & Rk

(o N BT

ARBBAEFRERFERERFRNIEF  BF
BERRERZAMNE  ARREEEEEEIEZ
FREMEEN -ARALTE  REFSHH RN
BE_ZT—tFANA=THLAEA ARFAEE
SFRIEAR LT AR R S6FT S e X IR TR Z R
B 5T RIS

N

NRIBIERAIZER LR BIFE18.44 1K/ & 1

N
FERRE  LHRARRAZ T -RFFHA -

EHIETE R W

ARFIERM—ERRESETELSRPIZIBT
Bl BRI R ETT AR B 555.4818 £5.67
BB 2R TERPIZE - ARAIEMEEBEERE
EHTEHR MEREEECHR HEREE-Z
—+FANAZTHLEANEAA " EEBTEBEERS
EER AR RN EBEFTETEERZIZTR
SRR e

R 33 4]

BRI GERREAMEHMBRARNDHIAE
EZzHa—B BT NFT_A—HEER-
BESAMmEBRAERARNE T —NF+ - —
B B R R B AZ B -

RREES
HERELXLKRERRLAT
B ZERHATEFERTHAAE
mER

5 —E-—tEFNATH

53



- S
s TR

54 ! NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED [ %1 4 3¢ b 45 1 4 PR A 7

CORPORATE INFORMATION

ACINEgE,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS HHY
Chairman and Non-executive Director EEREBITEE
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam B SE A&

Vice Chairperson, Executive Director and FZRRAITEERITHAEH
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Law Po Yee BERLLT

Vice Chairperson and Executive Director FZERHUTESE
Mr. Chow Kai Weng BRL & kA&
Executive Director HITEE

Ms. Sin Ho Yee Vb K=k
Non-executive Directors FEHTEE

Dr. Lam Lee G. MREE L

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim EX S
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHRITEE
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor PR R3S

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert BEEXCxE

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick HEEHKR

Mr. Li Kit Chee T2 EE
COMPANY SECRETARY VA3

Mr. Luk Ho Lun R 45 B o A
COMPLIANCE OFFICER B = AT
Ms. Law Po Yee BERZLT
HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL B BRER FESEME
PLACE OF BUSINESS

Rm. L&M, 21/F, FRPEAM
Kings Wing Plaza, Phase 1, &R 3R

No. 3 On Kwan Street, R Is E 51 H
Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T. ELEME



SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICES

Principal share registrar and transfer office
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Law Po Yee
Mr. Chow Kai Weng

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Nomination Committee

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
Mr. Li Kit Chee
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Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

31/F, Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

GROUP’S WEBSITE

http://www.nationalarts.hk

STOCK CODE

8228
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National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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